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SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION 
SEC FORM 17-A 

 
ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 11 

OF THE SECURITIES REGULATION CODE AND SECTION 141 
OF THE CORPORATION CODE OF THE PHILIPPINES 

 
 
1. For the Calendar Year ended December 31, 2024 
 
 
2.  SEC Identification Number AS93000120        
 
 
3. BIR Tax Identification No.002-155-598-000 
 
 
4. FORUM PACIFIC, INC. 
 Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter  
 
 
5. Metro Manila, Philippines 
 Province, country or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization 
 
 
6.  (SEC Use only) 

Industry Classification Code                    
 
 
7. 35/F, One Corporate Centre, Doña Julia Vargas Ave., cor. Meralco Ave. Ortigas Center, Pasig 

City 
Address of principal office 

 
 
8. Telephone No. 8706-7888  
 Registrant’s telephone number, including area code 
 
 
9. Not applicable 
 Former name, former address, and former fiscal year, if changed since last report. 
 
 
10. Securities registered pursuant to Sections 4 and 8 of the RSA:  
 

Title of Each Class    No. of Shares of Common Stock  
Outstanding and Amount of Debt Outstanding 

 
Common Shares – ₱1.00 par value   Issued -   ₱1,838,943,246 

(Partially paid Subscription – ₱1,148,264,079) 
 
 
11. Are any or all of these securities listed on the Philippine Stock Exchange? 
 
  Yes [  ]                        No. [   ] 
 
 
12. Check whether the registrant: 
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(a) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 17 of the SRC and SRC Rule 17 thereunder or  
 
Section 11 of the RSA and RSA Rule 11(a)-1 thereunder, and Sections 26 and 141 of The 
Corporation Code of the Philippines during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period 
that the registrant was required to file such reports); 

 
   Yes  [   ] No  [   ] 
 
 

(b)  has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. 
 
   Yes  [   ] No  [   ] 
 
 
13.  The aggregate market value of the voting stock held by non-affiliates: ₱202,583,861 
 
 
14. Not Applicable  
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PART I – BUSINESS AND GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
 
Item 1. Business 
Forum Pacific, Inc. is a company incorporated in the Philippines and registered with the Securities and 
Exchange Commission (SEC) on January 8, 1993, with a principal office at the 35th Floor One 
Corporate Centre, Doña Julia Vargas Ave. corner Meralco Ave., Ortigas Center, Pasig City. 
 
The shares of FPI are listed and traded in the Philippine Stocks Exchange or PSE. Formerly known as Air 
Philippines International Corporation, FPI was registered to engage in investing, purchasing and 
acquiring assets of any kind and description with the secondary purpose of engaging in the exploration, 
development and production of petroleum and related products, as well as other mineral and chemical 
substances. 
 
Business Focus for the Coming Year 
 
The investment made during 2017 in Taguig Lake City Development Corporation, a corporation engaged 
in the real estate industry, is starting to show some results, now that the Laguna Lake Development 
Authority has responded positively to this Company’s proposals to rehabilitate the Laguna de Bay. The 
Company will continue to support the progress of TLCDC in this regard. 
 
The Company will further scan for business target projects, and welcome other business opportunities 
from different industries apart from oil and gas and mineral exploration. As mentioned above, the 
management is currently discussing on how the Company will proceed with its remaining 33.33% capital 
stock investment in Forum Exploration, Inc., specifically whether to sell its interest or enter into 
partnership with potential buyers. 
 
On the other hand, given the growing requirements for power, the Company is actively looking into the 
traditional energy business, concentrating on cheap and consistent coal power for the country’s base 
loads.  Demand and supply studies, as well as site feasibility analysis and the selection of green and 
clean coal technologies are being conducted by select engineering advisers of the Company.  On the 
other hand, the Company is also considering investing into potential renewable energy sources like solar 
power, ethane, biofuels, hydro, wind and geothermal energy and nuclear power. The management is also 
conducting research and feasibility studies on various renewable projects, albeit utilizing more stringent 
investment hurdles, given that renewable energy projects produce power at higher pricing levels as 
compared to traditional energy sources. 
 
The Company’s management believes that such financial support and the discussed management plans 
are sufficient to provide the Company the ability to continue as a going concern. Accordingly, the financial 
statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. 
 
Description of Registrant 
(i)  Principal products and services 
Forum Pacific Inc. is a publicly listed holding company owning shares of stocks of an exploration 
company. 
 
(ii) Export Sales 
Forum Pacific, Inc. is not engaged in export sales. 
 
(iii) Distribution Methods of the Products 
Forum Pacific, Inc. has no distributions of products. 
 
(iv) Publicly-announced new product or service 
Forum Pacific, Inc. has no publicly-announced product or service. 
 
(v) Competition 
Since the Company is still on the exploration period, the company is not engaged in any competitions. 
 
 (vi) Sources and availability of raw materials and principal supplier 
None 
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(vii) Dependence on one or few major customers 
Forum Pacific, Inc. is not dependent on any one industry, company or customers. 
 
(viii) Transactions with and/or dependence on related parties 
Forum Pacific, Inc. has no major transactions on related parties. 

 
(ix) Patent, Trademark, Copyright, Franchise, Concession or Royalty Agreement 
None 

 
(x) Government Approval of Principal Products or Services  
Forum Pacific, Inc. has no major approval from the government. 

 
(xi) Effect of Existing or Probable Governmental Regulations on Business  
None 

 
(xii) Estimate of the Amount Spent During Each Year of the Last Three Calendar Years on 
Research and Development Activities 
None 

 
(xiii) Cost and Effects of Compliance with Environmental Laws 
Forum Pacific, Inc. has no cost and effects of compliance with environmental laws. 

 
(xiv) Total Number of Fulltime Employees (as of December 31, 2024)  
None. The Company is under a Management Agreement with affiliated company providing consultancy 
and management services for the Company. 

 
(xv) Major Risk 
None 

 
Additional Requirements as to Certain Issues or Issuers 
Not Applicable 
 
Item 2. Leqal Proceedinqs  
A case of illegal dismissal and claims for unpaid salaries, back wages, separation pay and damages 
was filed by an employee (logistic coordinator), on February 1996. The respondents on the said case 
are James Dale Hood, Air Philippines International (Formerly Cophil Exploration & Drilling Co., Air 
Philippines International, Inc.) and Forum Exploration, Inc. The company’s legal counsel is set to meet 
with the Sheriff or labor officer in-charge of the case. As of December 31, 2024, the claimant didn’t 
make any demands or appeared before the Company’s principal office address to enforce the said writ 
of execution.  
 
Item 3. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders 
There were no matters submitted to a vote of security holders during the calendar year covered.  
 
Item 4. Properties  
The Company leases an office space from The Wellex Group, Inc. (TWGI) located at the 35th Floor One 
Corporate Centre, Doña Julia Vargas Ave. corner Meralco Ave., Ortigas Center, Pasig City. The lease 
started May 2014 and has been renewed until April 30, 2026. Office space monthly rental including 
storage room usage and utilities is ₱18,500, exclusive of VAT and withholding tax.  
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PART II – OPERATIONAL AND FINANCIAL INFORMATION 
 
 
Item 5. Market for Issuer's Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters 
Market Information 
The principal market of Forum Pacific Inc. common equity is the Philippine Stock Exchange, Inc. (PSE) 
where it was listed last December 19, 1994. The high and low sales prices by quarter for the last 3 years 
are as follows: 
 

  High Low 
2024 First Quarter 0.210 0.210 

 Second Quarter 0.250 0.250 
 Third Quarter 0.201 0.201 
 Fourth Quarter 0.210 0.210 
    

2023 First Quarter 0.230 0.230 
 Second Quarter 0.206 0.205 

 Third Quarter 0.212 0.200 
 Fourth Quarter 0.200 0.200 
    

2022 First Quarter 0.290 0.206 
 Second Quarter 0.208 0.206 

 Third Quarter 0.270 0.204 
 Fourth Quarter 0.230 0.230 
    

 
The high, low and close market prices is ₱0.22 as of April 8, 2025 (latest practicable trading date).  
 
The Corporation has only one class of registered security, “Class A – Common Shares”.  
 
Dividends 
The company's Articles of Incorporation states that dividends may be declared only out of the 
unrestricted retained earnings. The Company has declared no cash dividends on its common shares 
for the previous years. The Company's financial statements as of December 31, 2024 reflect negative 
retained earnings. Thus, unless the Company's retained earnings position changes, the directors will not 
be able to legally declare any dividends on its common shares. 
 
Forum Pacific Inc. has no restrictions that limit the ability to pay dividends on common equity. 
 
Recent Sales of Unregistered or Exempt Securities 
There are no recent sales of unregistered or exempt securities. 
 
Holders 
The number of shareholders of record as of December 31, 2024 was 856. Common shares issued and 
subscribed were 1,838,943,246. 
 
Top 20 Stockholders as of December 31, 2024 are as follows: 
 

 
Name Number of Shares Held % Total 

1 INTERNATIONAL POLYMER CORPORATION 496,887,494 26.501  
2 PCD NOMINEE CORPORATION 440,155,274 23.475  
3 THE WELLEX GROUP, INC. 376,950,000 20.104  
4 E.F. DURKEE & ASSOCIATES, INC. 77,838,563 4.151  
5 INTRA-INVEST SEC., INC. 48,159,000 2.568  
6 METROPOLITAN MANAGEMENT CORPORATION 30,000,000 1.600  
7 JUANITO C. UY 22,625,001 1.207  
8 PACRIM ENERGY N.L. 21,000,000 1.120  
9 SAPPHIRE SECURITIES INC. 19,433,500 1.036  

10 BENITO ONG AND/OR ZITA Y. ONG 18,000,000 0.960  
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11 PCD NOMINEE CORP. (NON-FILIPINO) 12,550,050 0.669  
12 NESTOR S. MANGIO 12,500,000 0.667  
13 A & A SECURITIES, INC. 11,911,320 0.635  
14 MARK SECURITIES CORPORATION 10,772,800 0.575  
15 GLOBALINKS SEC & STOCKS, INC. A/C # CWUSO001 9,400,000 0.501  
16 BELSON SECURITIES, INC. 9,200,000 0.491 
17 WEALTH SECURITIES, INC. 8,240,000 0.439  
18 RUBEN M. GAN 7,610,000 0.406  
19 LI CHIH-HUI 7,100,000 0.379  
20 DAVID GO SECURITIES CORPORATION 6,880,000 0.367  

 
 
Equity Ownership of Foreigners as of December 31, 2024: 
 

Class of 
Security 

Total 
Outstanding 

Shares 

Shares 
Allowed to 
Foreigners 

Shares 
Owned by 
Foreigners 

% Owned 
by 

Foreigners 

Shares 
Owned by 

Filipino 

% Owned 
by Filipino 

“A” 1,838,943,246 735,577,298 42,494,942 2.3108 1,796,448,304 97.6892 
 
 
Item 6. Manaqement's Discussion and Analysis or Plan of Operations 

(1) Management's Discussion and Analysis 
 
Key Performance Indicators 
The company determines its performance on the following five (5) indicators: 

1. Advances to Related Parties – currently, The Wellex Group, Inc. (TWGI), one of the company’s 
major stockholders, is funding all operational expenses of the Company. Total advances 
added/(deducted) as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 are (₱3,623,291) and (₱2,463,357) 
(excluding interest income on the loans to TWGI amounting to ₱5,933,195 and ₱5,933,195 in 
2024 and 2023), respectively. 
 

2. Current Ratios - current assets against the current liabilities of the Company. It measures the 
company’s ability to pay short-term obligations. Current ratio for the year 2024 is 3.73% and 3.79% 
for 2023. A significant decrease in the ratio by 0.06% was mainly due to net decrease in current 
assets of ₱1,257 and increase in current liabilities of ₱23,869 in 2024. The net decrease is 
composed of cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities. 

 
3. Cash Ratio - the most conservative liquidity ratio. It excludes all current assets except the most 

liquid: cash and cash equivalents. It measures the amount of cash and cash equivalents there are in 
the current assets to cover current liabilities. The cash ratio of the company for the year 2024 is 
2.57% and 2.71% for 2023. Same with the current ratio, decrease in cash ratio was due to 
decrease in cash resulting from the Company’s cash flows from operating, investing and 
financing activities and increase in current liabilities. 

 
4. Debt ratio - it is one of the financial leverage ratios which measure the extent to which the firm is 

using long term debt. Formula is total debt divided by total assets. Debt ratio for the year 2024 is 
2.47% and 2.38% for 2023. 

 
5. Debt-to-equity ratio - the formula is total debt divided by total equity. It indicates what proportion 

of equity and debt that the company is using to finance its assets. The debt to equity ratio for 
the year 2024 is 2.53% and 2.44% for 2023. 

 
Indicator 2024 2023 

Advances ratio 1.38% 0.95% 
Current ratio 3.73% 3.79% 
Cash ratio 2.57% 2.71% 
Debt ratio 2.47% 2.38% 
Debt-to-equity ratio 2.53% 2.44% 
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Financial Highlights  
The following table shows the comparative operating data and financial statements of the Company for  
the years ending December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022. 
 
 2024 2023 2022 
Revenues ₱– ₱– ₱– 
Cost and Expenses 2,469,340 2,253,286 2,190,963 
Gross Profit (Loss) (2,469,340) (2,253,286) (2,190,963) 
Other income  6,441,539 5,965,242 5,933,353 
Other expense (21,539,580) (206,109) (626,641) 
Net income (loss) before tax (17,567,381) 3,505,847 3,115,749 
Benefit from (provision for) income tax    

 Current 884,336 938,400 279,347 
 Deferred (518) 202 (63,825) 

Net income (loss) for the year (₱18,451,199) ₱2,567,245 ₱2,900,227 
Other comprehensive loss:    
Unrealized gain (loss) on AFS financial asset (65,866,850) (2,760,810) (6,776,535) 
Total comprehensive income (loss) for the year (84,318,049) (193,565) (3,876,308) 
Earnings (loss) per share (₱0.016) ₱0.002 ₱0.002 

 
 
CHANGES IN RESULTS OF OPERATION 
 
Revenues and Earnings per share 
Since the company ceased to have control over Express Savings Bank, Inc. and still banking on new 
petroleum and gas service contracts, the company has no revenues recorded in the year 2024, 2023 
and 2022. 
 
The company incurred income/(losses) of (₱18.5 million), ₱2.6 million and ₱2.9 million in 2024, 2023 
and 2022, respectively. Income/(Loss) per share for 2024, 2023 and 2022 were (₱0.016), ₱0.002 and 
₱0.002, respectively. The company charges interest income on its advances to related parties which is 
one of the company’s source of other income. Additionally, in line with the plan for the next twelve 
months, the Board will continue to explore business opportunities to aspire for maximized potential 
earnings and also banks on its business investment in Forum Exploration, Inc., the project operator for 
Libertad Gas Field or Service Contract (SC40).  
 
Cost and Expenses 
Cost and expenses consisted primarily of professional fees, management fee, membership fee and dues, 
depreciation, publication fee, utilities, donation, taxes and licenses, transportation, office supplies and 
miscellaneous. For the years 2024 and 2023 amounts recorded were ₱2.5 million and ₱2.3 million, 
respectively. 
 
Increase of ₱0.2 million or 8.70% is mainly attributable to the net effect of increase in professional fees by 
₱0.2 million, increase in taxes and licenses by ₱0.04 million, decrease in depreciation expense by ₱0.01 
million, decrease in membership fees and dues by ₱0.01 million, decrease in miscellaneous and other 
expenses by ₱0.02 million. 
 
Other Income (Expenses) and Finance Cost 
This account is composed of interest income in advances to related parties and cash in bank, unrealized 
foreign exchange gain (loss), recovery on (provision for) impairment of input tax and finance cost and 
provision for impairment on advances to related parties. 
 
For 2024, the Company recorded a recovery of allowance for impairment of input tax amounting to 
₱508,246 and allowance for impairment of input tax amounting to ₱199,458 for the year 2023. Unrealized 
foreign exchange gain/(loss) for 2024 and 2023 are (₱205,232) and ₱31,925, respectively. It arises from 
the fluctuation of Peso to U.S. dollar exchange rates on the Company’s payable to FEI, Ltd. amounting to 
$82,922 as of December 31, 2024.  
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Interest income in banks for 2024, 2023 and 2022 amounted to ₱98, ₱122 and ₱158, respectively. The 
company reported interest income in advances to related parties in 2024, 2023 and 2022 amounting to 
₱5,933,195, ₱5,933,195 and ₱5,933,195, respectively.  

The Company also reported a Finance cost in 2024, 2023 and 2022 amounted to ₱13,581, ₱6,651 and 
₱14,789, respectively.  
 
During 2024, the company recorded a provision for impairment on its receivables from an affiliate, The 
Wellex Group, Inc. in the amount of ₱21,320,767 due to assessment that portion of the receivable is more 
likely unrecoverable. 
 
CHANGES IN FINANCIAL CONDITION 
 
ASSETS 
Cash 
Cash in bank carries interest at respective bank deposit rate. For the year 2024 and 2023, the total 
cash and cash equivalents were ₱91,574 and ₱95,841, respectively. On July 19, 2012, the Board of 
Directors approved the opening of a deposit account with Banco De Oro-Meralco Ave. - Branch to 
facilitate the collection and disbursement processes of the company. 
 
Prepayments and other current assets 
The account is composed of advances to officers and employees and other assets amounting to 
₱41,213 and input tax of ₱2,325,446 with full valuation allowance for impairment as of December 31, 
2024. Input VAT decreased by ₱508,246 or 17.94% in 2024 due to offsetting against output tax from 
interest income recorded for the year. 
 
Input tax is stated at face value less provision for impairment, if any.  Allowance for unrecoverable input 
tax, if any, is maintained by the Company at a level considered adequate to provide potential 
uncollectible portion of the claims. The Company, on a continuing basis, makes a review of the status 
has no outstanding balance for the year ended December 31, 2024 and 2023. The Company has 
provided full valuation allowance on all its input tax for 2023 as it sees no economic use for it in the 
future. During 2024, the company, pursuant to the revenue regulations issued by the Bureau of Internal 
Revenue (RR No.3-2024), don’t recognized provision for impairment on input VAT but recorded a 
recovery of allowance instead. Balance of input VAT was offset to output VAT from interest income 
recorded during the year. 
 
Advances to related parties (net) 
The Company, in the normal course of business, has transactions with related parties. Such 
transactions are unsecured and partially impaired. The Company did not provide nor received any 
guarantee on its transaction with related parties. All outstanding balances are to be settled through 
cash or offsetting arrangement. This account consists of advances to Forum Exploration, Inc. (FEI) 
and The Wellex Group, Inc. (TWGI). Total amount recorded for the year 2024 and 2023 (net of 
allowance for impairment loss of ₱242,526,151 and ₱221,205,384) were ₱242,087,403 and 
₱260,396,266, respectively. Decreased by ₱18,308,863 or 7.03% is due to net effect of (1) interest 
income earned from related parties of ₱5,933,195; (2) additional advances by ₱3,623,291; and (3) 
provision for impairment of ₱21,320,767. 
 
Advances to TWGI 
On December 16, 2020, TWGI issued a new promissory note amounting to ₱296,659,777 in favor of the 
Company. The term of the loan is five years maturing on December 15, 2025, bearing an interest of 2% 
per annum. Accrued interest receivable for this promissory note amounted to ₱23,979,996 and 
₱18,046,801 as at December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively. 

To settle the outstanding advances, the Company entered into the following contracts with TWGI, which 
in return, amounts incurred will be applied to the outstanding advances: 
 

1. The Company leases an office space from TWGI starting May 2014. The lease is for a period 
of two years but renewable thereafter upon mutual agreement of both parties. The contract 
has been renewed four times since then and is currently valid until April 30, 2026. Total rental 
and utilities expense charged to operations amounted to ₱222,000 for both years ended 
December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively.  
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2. In April 2012, the Company has entered into a consultancy agreement with TWGI, whereby 
the latter will provide corporate planning and financial services on its various corporate 
functions and undertakings. The contract has been renewed five times since then and is 
currently valid until April 30, 2026. Total management fee charged to operations amounted to 
₱480,000 for both years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively.  

The Company originally provide allowance for impairment on advances to TWGI prior to agreements 
entered into to settle the outstanding advances. Allowance for impairment will be reversed once the 
unimpaired portion of advances is substantially collected and upon assessment by the management 
on the continuity of the existing agreements. 
 
 
Advances to FEI 
Advances to FEI pertain to the carrying value of exploration net assets transferred by the Company in 
2007. Outstanding balance for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 amounted to 
₱171,631,076, gross of allowance for impairment loss. The Company recognized an additional 
impairment loss amounting to nil in 2024 and 2023, as review on the FEI financial status and operations 
showed an unlikely possibility of collection. 
 
FEI is a legal and owner of 100% interest in Service Contract (SC) 40, an upstream oil and gas contract 
area in the Philippines, entered into with the Philippine Government through the Department of Energy. 
Annual gas production from field on SC 40 totaled 41.09 million standard cubic feet (MMSCF) and 78.66 
MMSCF since the start of production in 2012. 
 
FEI has also implemented Work Program and Budget as approved by DOE last November 17, 2014 
which includes, among others, a commitment to perform land gravity survey over the Dalingding Structure 
starting March 2015. Since 2014, FEI has performing geological and geophysical study aimed to identify 
and prioritize highly prospective areas for future exploration. 
 
In 2019, FEI engaged the services of an operations geologist to prepare the geological program and 
prospect montage for the Dalingding-2 well, which will be drilled over the Dalingding Prospect, a reefal 
structure defined by seismic that has the Barili Limestone as the primary target. A well, Dalingding-1, was 
drilled by Cophil Exploration in 1996 and was plugged and abandoned as a dry hole with minor gas 
shows after reaching a total depth of 1,508 ft. Following FEI’s recent re-evaluation of the prospect, it was 
concluded that Dalingding-1 did not reach the Barili target, which is estimated at 1,740 ft, or 232 ft below 
the well’s total depth. The current plan is to drill a well down to at least 4,000 ft to penetrate the Barili and 
secondary targets underneath.  
 
In June 2022, FEI contracted a drilling consultant to prepare a drilling program and budgets for two (2) 
wells, one of which will be located in the Dalingding Prospect, a reef structure defined by seismic with the 
Late Miocene to Pilocene-age Barili Limestone as the primary target. A well, Dalingding-1, was drilled in 
this structure in 1996 and was plugged and abandoned as a dry hole with minor gas shows after reaching 
a total depth of 1,508 ft. FEI’s recent re-evaluation of the prospect concluded that Dalingding-1 did not 
reach the Barili target, which is currently estimated at 480 ft. below the well’s final depth. FEI’ proposes 
drilling Dalingding-2 down to 4,000 ft to reach the Barili Limestone and secondary targets underneath. 
 
In August 2022, FEI contracted a third party for the disposal of the Hycalog Rig and ancillary equipment 
stored in Brgy. Maya, Daanbantayan, Cebu Province. The sale process started on September 13, 2022 of 
which a Luzon-based company offered the highest bid. The pull-out of the items began in December 2022 
and was completed in June 2023. 

An Independent Technical Evaluation involving a review of available data, project risk management, and 
project economics of the Maya and Dalingding Prospects started in the first quarter of 2023. The initial 
findings show that the deterministic and probablilistic volumetric estimates for the Dalingding Prospect 
indicate mean resources of 10 billion cubic feet (“BCF”) for a gas case and 3.5 MMBO for an oil case. The 
study, included prospect risking and economics, was completed in 1Q 2024.  

The 2024 Work Program and Budget (WP&B) and Annual Procurement Plan (APP) for SC40 was 
submitted to the Department of Energy (DOE) last December 22, 2023 and was approved by DOE on 
January 03, 2024. Details of the magnetotellutic survey, which is scheduled to begin in May 2024, were 
submitted to the DOE last March 27, 2024. 
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The Company is positive on FEI’s on its exploration and future development work in providing the viability 
of its oil properties to produce oil in commercial quantities.  
 
As at December 31, 2024 and 2023, FEI has not yet returned the value of the exploration assets that the 
Company transferred. 
 
Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI) (net) 
Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income as at December 31 consist of: 
 

 
2023 2023 

Unquoted shares   
 Balance at beginning of the year ₱65,711,573 ₱65,711,573 

Unrealized fair value loss (62,604,074) – 
 3,107,499 65,711,573 
Quoted shares   
Cost 7,529,480 7,529,480 
Net unrealized fair value gain 5,270,64 8,533,418 
  12,800,122 16,062,898 

 
₱15,907,621 ₱81,774,471 

 
 
Unquoted shares - Forum exploration, Inc (FEI) and Taguig Lake City Development Corporation (TLCDC) 
Investment in unquoted shares of stock represents ownership of the Company in Forum Exploration, Inc. 
and Taguig Lake City Development Corporation as at December 31, 2024. These investments are 
classified as financial assets at FVOCI as the Company does not participate in the financial and operating 
policy of the investee which manifests control, joint control or significant influence. These Company 
believes the carrying amount of these unquoted shares of stock approximate fair value. 
  
Quoted shares - Philippine Estates Corporation (PHES) 
Investment in quoted shares of stock represents investment in Philippine Estates Corporation (PHES), a 
publicly listed company. The Company owns 50,196,553 common shares and constitutes 3.47% 
ownership in PHES. The fair value of these shares has been determined directly by reference to 
published prices in the active market. 
 
Right-Of-Use Asset (net) 
Right-of-use asset are the asset that represents lessee’s right to use an asset over the lease term. The 
Company recognized a right-of-use asset as a result of adoption of PFRS 16. The carrying amount of 
right-of-use asset is ₱181,957 and ₱47,513 as of 2024 and 2023, respectively. Based on the 
impairment review of the Company’s right-of-use asset, the Company believes that there is no 
indication of impairment on its right-of-use asset as at December 31, 2024 and 2023 (Note 8). 
 
Deferred Tax Asset 
The Company has an outstanding balance of Deferred Tax Asset amounting to ₱46,210 and ₱12,081 as 
of December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively (Note 14). 
 
LIABILITIES 
Accounts Payable and other liabilities 
These accounts consist of Accounts Payable, Withholding Tax Payable, Accrued Expense and Deferred 
Output VAT accounts. Total amounted recorded for 2024 and 2023 were to ₱2,539,941 and ₱2,551,593 
respectively, with a decrease by ₱11,652 or 0.46% due to decreased in accrued expenses and 
withholding tax payable. 
 
Lease Liability 
The Company recognized the asset as ‘right-of-use asset’ and corresponding lease liability (current and 
non-current) with present value of ₱184,838 and ₱48,323 as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, 
respectively or an increase by ₱136,515 or 282.51% (Note 11). 
 
Advances from Affiliate 
Advances from Forum Exploration, Inc. Ltd. (FEI – Ltd.) 
The Company received cash advances from Forum (FEI) Ltd. to finance its acquisition of 60% 
stockholdings of Forum Coal Cebu Holdings, Inc. (FCCHI; Company’s subsidiary which was formally 
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dissolved last July 6, 2012). The Company received USD denominated cash advances from FEI, Ltd. with 
no definite terms of payment. Outstanding balance of account as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 were 
₱4,796,623 and ₱4,591,391 respectively. 
Deferred Tax Liability 
The Company has an outstanding balance of Deferred Tax Liability amounting to ₱45,489 and ₱11,878 
as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively (Note 14). 
 
(2) Plan of Operations 

 
Business Plans 
To address the foregoing matters that may raise doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going 
concern, the shareholders of the Company have committed in principle to provide full financial support to 
the Company in order to sustain its operations, meet the working capital requirements and settle 
obligations as they fall due. 
 
The Company has been reviewing outstanding receivables and advances to affiliates and has designed 
collection programs to improve the Company’s financial status.  The board continues to evaluate calling 
for the remaining stock subscription as source of funds for future projects, with the aim of utilizing this 
process as a tool to fund capital intensive endeavors.  The officers and major stockholders of the 
Company have committed to provide full financial support to the Company once its projects will 
materialize and a definite project is in place.  The Company estimates that it will satisfy its capital funding 
within two (2) years from the finalization and approval of such business project plans. 
 
The Company will prioritize the improvement of its financial position and exploring new business 
opportunities in oil and gas exploration and extraction, order to maintain strong and healthy cash flows, 
and at the same time, aspire for maximized potential earnings. However, the prospects are still 
undetermined, given the geo-political issues hounding territorial encroachment by the Chinese at the 
West Philippine Sea. 
 
The management is still evaluating potential buyers who expressed interest to buy out the Company’s 
remaining 33.33% capital stock investment in Forum Exploration, Inc. (FEI), a subsidiary of Pangilinan-led 
Forum Energy Plc and the project operator for Libertad Gas Field or Service Contract (SC40).  Talks, 
however, with the three (3) interested groups are still on hold at the moment, pending clarification of 
several commercial issues. 
 
FEI has been keen on reexamining the oil and gas prospects for SC40, and a new series for drilling 
programs are currently underway in Cebu in an effort to refine drilling data and improving on previous 
information already gathered in the previous depth targets. The Company is confident that the new drilling 
programs will bear good fruit. 
 
Since the Company is affiliated with group of mining companies, projects in the mining sector are being 
re-evaluated at the moment. Despite the stringent evaluations being conducted by the Department of 
Environment and Natural Resources (DENR) for new mining applications, the government has also 
indicated that a revival of the industry is forthcoming, especially as a means to address the economic 
slowdown caused by the pandemic.  
 
The investment made during 2017 in Taguig Lake City Development Corporation, a corporation engaged 
in the real estate industry, is starting to show some results, now that the Laguna Lake Development 
Authority has responded positively to this Company’s proposals to rehabilitate the Laguna de Bay. The 
Company will continue to support the progress of TLCDC in this regard. 
 
The Company will further scan for business target projects, and welcome other business opportunities 
from different industries apart from oil and gas and mineral exploration. As mentioned above, the 
management is currently discussing on how the Company will proceed with its remaining 33.33% capital 
stock investment in Forum Exploration, Inc., specifically whether to sell its interest or enter into 
partnership with potential buyers. 
 
On the other hand, given the growing requirements for power, the Company is actively looking into the 
traditional energy business, concentrating on cheap and consistent coal power for the country’s base 
loads.  Demand and supply studies, as well as site feasibility analysis and the selection of green and 
clean coal technologies are being conducted by select engineering advisers of the Company.  On the 
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other hand, the Company is also considering investing into potential renewable energy sources like solar 
power, ethane, biofuels, hydro, wind and geothermal energy and nuclear power. The management is also 
conducting research and feasibility studies on various renewable projects, albeit utilizing more stringent 
investment hurdles, given that renewable energy projects produce power at higher pricing levels as 
compared to traditional energy sources. 
 
The Company’s management believes that such financial support and the discussed management plans 
are sufficient to provide the Company the ability to continue as a going concern. Accordingly, the financial 
statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. 
 
(i) Summary of Material Trends, Events and Uncertainties  
Forum Pacific, Incorporated  
The shares of FPI are listed and traded in Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE). The company was 
registered to engage in investing, purchasing and acquiring assets of any kind and description with the  
secondary purpose of engaging in the exploration, development and production of petroleum and 
related products, as well as other mineral and chemical substances. It is presently a holding company 
and owning shares of stocks of an exploration company. 
 
(ii) Events that will Trigger Direct of Contingent Financial Obligation 
Since the Forum Pacific, Inc. are still looking a strategic partner to enhance the development of the 
Company specially in exploration business, the Company have no events that will trigger direct or 
contingent financial obligation that is material to Forum Pacific, Inc. including any default or 
acceleration of an obligation. 

 
(iii) Material Off-Balance Sheet Transactions, Arrangements, Obligations 
There are no material off-balance sheet transactions, arrangements, obligations (including contingent 
obligations), and other relationships of Forum Pacific Inc. with unconsolidated entities or other 
persons created during the reporting period. 
 
(iv) Any Known Trends, Events of Uncertainties (Material Impact on Liquidity) 
The Company is mainly exposed to liquidity risk through its maturing liabilities. The Company has a 
policy of regularly monitoring its cash position to ensure that maturing liabilities will be adequately 
met.  
 
The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, banking facilities and 
reserve borrowing facilities, by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and matching 
the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities. 
 
The details of the maturity analysis of the Company’s liabilities are as follows: 
 
 

December 31, 2024 
 Total On 

demand 
Less than 

three months 
3-12 

months 1-5 years 

Advances from related party 
Lease Liability  

₱4,796,623 
184,838 

₱− 
− 

₱− 
− 

₱– 
137,908 

₱4,796,623 
46,390 

Trade and other payables* 367,000 − − 367,000 – 
 ₱5,348,461 ₱− ₱− ₱504,908 ₱4,843,553 

*excluding government liabilities 
 

December 31, 2023 
 Total On 

demand 
Less than 

three months 
3-12 

months 1-5 years 

Advances from related party 
Lease Liability  

₱4,591,391 
48,323 

₱− 
− 

₱− 
− 

₱– 
48,323 

₱4,591,391 
– 

Trade and other payables* 378,852 − − 378,852 – 
 ₱5,018,566 ₱− ₱− ₱427,175 ₱4,591,391 

*excluding government liabilities 
 
The Company’s current ratio for year ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 is 0.04 to 1 and 0.04 to 1, 
respectively. 
 
(v) Significant Element of Income or Loss That Did Not Arise from Continuing Operation 
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PFRS 16, Leases. This new standard introduces a single lessee accounting model to be applied to all 
leases, whilst substantially carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in PAS 17 Leases.  
 
Lessees recognize a right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying leased asset and a 
lease liability representing its obligation to make lease payments for all leases with a term of more than 
twelve (12) months, unless the underlying asset is of low value. Whereas, lessors continue to classify 
leases as operating leases or finance leases, and to account for those two types of leases differently. The 
standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2019, with earlier application 
permitted for entities that apply PFRS 15 at or before the date of initial application of PFRS 16.  
 
The Company adopted PFRS 16 using the modified retrospective approach, with recognition of 
transitional adjustments on deficit as at January 1, 2019, without restatement of comparative figures.  
 
PFRS 9, Financial Instruments (2014). PFRS 9, Financial Instruments replaces PAS 39 Financial 
Instruments” Recognition and Measurement, bringing together all three aspects of the accounting for 
financial instruments: classification and measurement, impairment, and hedge accounting. The standard 
requires all recognized financial assets that are within the scope of PAS 39 to be subsequently measured 
at amortized cost or at fair value. Specifically, debt investments that are held within a business model 
whose objective is to collect the contractual cash flows, and that have contractual cash flows that are 
solely for payments of principal and interest on the outstanding balance are generally measured at 
amortized cost at the end of subsequent reporting periods. All other debts investments and equity 
investments are measured at their fair values at the end of subsequent reporting periods. For financial 
liabilities that are designated as at fair value through profit or loss, the amount of change in the fair value 
of the financial liability that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability is presented in other 
comprehensive income would create or increase an accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair 
value attributable to a financial liability’s credit risk are not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss. 
 
The Company has adopted the PFRS 9 Financial Instruments from January 1, 2018 and resulted in 
changes in accounting policies and adjusted amounts recognized in the financial statements. The 
comparative figures have been restated to comply with the transitional provisions in PFRS 9. 
 
On December 16, 2020, TWGI issued a new promissory note amounting to ₱296,659,777 which 
superseded the previous promissory note. The term of the loan is five years maturing on December 15, 
2025, bearing an interest of 2% per annum. Accrued interest receivable for this promissory note 
amounted to ₱23,979,996 and ₱18,045,801 as at December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively, which 
composed of deferred output vat and interest income. 
 
 
(vi) Material Changes on Line Items in Financial Statements 
Material changes on line items in financial statements are presented under the captions Changes in 
Financial Condition" and Changes in Operating Results" above, see attached Notes to Financial 
Statements.  
 
(vii) Effect of Seasonal Changes in the Financial Condition or Results of Operations 
The financial condition or results of operations is not affected by any seasonal change. 
 
Item 7. Financial Statements 
The Financial Statements and related Notes to Financial Statements of the Company are incorporated 
herein by reference and attached as an integral part of this Annual Report. 
 
Other Relevant Information 
The Group adopted PFRS 16 using the modified retrospective approach, with recognition of transitional 
adjustments on deficit as at January 1, 2019, without restatement of comparative figures. 
 
The Company has adopted the PFRS 9 Financial Instruments from January 1, 2018 and resulted in 
changes in accounting policies and adjusted amounts recognized in the financial statements. The 
comparative figures have been restated to comply with the transitional provisions in PFRS 9. 
 
See attached Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for a detailed description of the changes in 
accounting policies and procedures.  
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Item 8. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure  
 
External Audit Fees and Services 
Audit and related fees, excluding VAT and out of pocket expenses) for Forum Pacific, Inc. is ₱470,000 
in 2024 and ₱465,000 in 2023 for expressing an opinion on the financial statements and assistance 
in preparing the annual income tax return. Any deficiencies in internal control and detected 
misstatements and fraudulent or illegal acts are other information given to the attention of the 
management. 
 
Diaz Murillo Dalupan and Company, CPAs (DMDC), upon recommendation by the Audit Committee of the 
Board of Directors composed of Mr. Aristeo R. Cruz as Chairman and Mr. Josaias T. Dela Cruz and Mr. 
Ruben D. Torres as members, was re-appointed by the stockholders as the principal external auditors for 
the year 2024. The selection of external auditors is made on the basis of credibility, professional 
reputation, accreditation with the Securities and Exchange Commission and affiliation with a reputable 
foreign partner. The professional fees of the external auditors are approved by the Company after 
approval by the stockholders of the engagement and prior to the commencement of each audit season. In 
compliance with SEC Rule 68 paragraph 3(b)(iv) (Rotation of External Auditors), and as adopted by the 
Company, external auditors or engagement partners are rotated or changed every five years or earlier. 
Mr. Jozel Francisco C. Santos was the lead engagement partner from 2014 to 2015, Ms. Rosemary D. De 
Mesa in 2016 to 2018, Mr. Richard Noel M. Ponce in 2019-2023 and Ms. Michelle Marie A. Recto for the 
year 2024. 

Audit committee's approval policies and procedures for the above services - the committee will 
evaluate the proposals from known external audit firms. The review will focus on quality of service, 
commitment to deadline and fees as a whole, and no one factor should necessarily be determinable. 
 
Changes and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure 
No independent accountant who was previously engaged as the principal accountant to audit Forum 
Pacific Inc. Financial Statements, on whom the principal accountant expressed reliance in its 
report regarding a significant subsidiary, has resigned (or indicated it has declined to stand for re-
election after the completion of the current audit) or was dismissed in the two most recent fiscal years 
or any subsequent interim period. Furthermore, there was no disagreement with the former accountant 
on any matter of accounting principles or practices, financial statement disclosures, or auditing scope or 
procedure. 

 
PART III – CONTROL AND COMPENSATION INFORMATION 

 
Item 9. Directors and Executive Officers of the Issuer 
Directors, including Independent Directors and Executive Officers 
There are eleven (11) members of the board, three (3) of whom are independent directors. Names, 
ages, citizenship and position and office of all directors and executive officers: 
 

Name Age Citizenship Position Years of Service 
Atty. Ruben D. Torres 
 

83 
 

Filipino 
 

Chairman 
Independent Director 

2021-Present 
2018-2022 

Elvira A. Ting 64 Filipino President/Director 1996-Present 
Kenneth T. Gatchalian 49 Filipino Treasurer/Director 2004-Present 
Atty. Lamberto B. Mercado, Jr. 60 Filipino Director 1998-Present 
Richard L. Ricardo 61 Filipino Director 2014-Present 
Atty. Arthur R. Ponsaran 81 Filipino Director 2000-Present 
Renato C. Francisco 76 Filipino Independent Director 2020-Present 
Sergio Antonio S. Ortiz-Luis 50 Filipino Independent Director 2024-Present 
Josaias T. Dela Cruz 63 Filipino Independent Director 2021-Present 
Atty. Aristeo R. Cruz 58 Filipino Independent Director 2021-Present 
Omar M. Guinomla 52 Filipino Director 2014-Present 
Amando J. Ponsaran, Jr. 54 Filipino Corporate Secretary 2024-Present 
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Atty. Dorothy Jean. M. Aclan 31 Filipino Assistant Corporate Secretary 2024-Present 
Annabelle T. Abunda 
 

48 
 

Filipino 
 

Compliance Officer 
Finance Officer 

2017-Present 
2022-Present 

 
The Directors of the Company are elected at the annual stockholders' meeting to hold office until the next 
succeeding annual meeting and until their respective successors have been elected and qualified. Thus, 
the term of the office of each director is one year, until the Board of Directors at its first meeting following the 
Meeting of the Stockholders has elected their successors annually.  
 
Their respective terms of office are until the corresponding meeting of the Board of Directors in the next year 
or until the successor shall have been elected or shall have qualified. 
 
Business experiences during the past five (5) years and other directorships. 
 
 

Name and Position Other Companies Affiliated Position 
Atty. Ruben D. Torres   
Chairman/Director 
Filipino 

Services Exporters Risk Management & 
Consultancy Co 

Chairman/CEO 

83 years old BPO Workers Association of the Phils. President 
B.A. in Political Science Trade Union Congress of the Phils. VP-International Affairs 
Bachelor of Laws Torres Caparas Torres Law Offices Senior Partner 
University of the Philippines Waterfront Phils., Inc. Director 
 Acesite (Phils.) Hotel Corp. Independent Director 
 Wellex Industries, Inc. Chairman/Director 
 Waterfront Manila Premier Dev’t., Inc. Chairman/Director 
 Alliance Energy Power and Dev’t., Inc. Chairman/Director 
 Aristocrat Manila City Holdings, Inc. Chairman/Director 
 Pacific Concorde Corp. President/Director 
 Philippine Estates Corp. Independent Director 
 Taguig Lake City Dev’t. Corp. Chairman/Director 
 Wellex Mining Corp. Corp. Treasurer/Director 
 Triton Construction and Dev’t. Corp. Chairman/Director 

 
 
 

Elvira A. Ting   
President/Director Waterfront Philippines, Inc. Corp. Treasurer/Director 
Filipino Wellex Industries, Inc. Vice President/Director 
64 years old Acesite (Phils.) Hotel Corp. Corp. Treasurer/Director 
BS in Business Administration Metro Alliance Holdings & Equities Corp. Chairman/Director 
Major in Management Philippine Estates Corp. President/Director 
Philippine School of Business Orient Pacific Corp. Chairman/Director 
Administration Crisanta Realty Dev’t. Corp. Chairman/President/Director 
 Recovery Dev’t Corp. Corp. Treasurer/Director 
 The Wellex Group, Inc. Corp. Treasurer/Director 
 Plastic City Industrial Corp. Corp. Treasurer/Director 
 Waterfront Manila Premier Dev’t, Inc. Corp. Secretary/Director 
 Rexlon Realty Group, Inc. Chairman/President/Director 
 Pacific Rehouse Corp. Corp. Treasurer/Director 
 Westland Pacific Properties Corp. Asst. Corp. Sec./Director 
 Heritage Pacific Corp. Chairman/President/Director 
 Palawan Estate Corp. Asst. Corp. Sec./Director 
 Poly Premier Property Dev’t Corp. Corp. Treasurer/Director 
 Wanda Prime Property Dev’t, Inc. President/ Director 
 Bocaue Prime Estate Corp. President/ Director 
 Bulacan Fortune Land Dev’t Corp. Chairman/President/Director 
 Taguig Lake City Dev’t Corp. President/ Director 
 Country Garden Agri-Tourism Dev’t, Inc. Corp. Treasurer/Director 
 Alliance Energy Power & Dev’t Corp. Corp. Secretary/Director 
 North Luzon Premier Dev’t Corp. President/ Director 
 Shangrila Global Estate Ventures Corp. Chairman/Director 
 Aristocrat Manila City Holdings, Inc. President/Director 
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 Seabrook Resources & Dev’t, Corp. Corp. Treasurer/Director 
   
   
   
   
Kenneth T. Gatchalian   
Treasurer/ Director Wellex Industries, Inc. President/Director 
Filipino Waterfront Phils., Inc. President/Director 
49 years old Waterfront Manila Premier Dev,t., Inc. President/Director 
B.S. in Architecture Acesite (Phils.) Hotels Corp. President/Director  
University of Texas, USA Philippine Estates Corp. Vice Chairman/Director 
 The Wellex Group, Inc. President/Director 
 Metro Alliance Holdings & Equities Corp. President/Director 
 Orient Pacific Corp. President/Director 
 Wellex Mining Corp. Chairman/President/Director 
 Westland Pacific Properties Corp. Corp. Treasurer/Director 
 Wellex Petroleum, Inc. Corp. Secretary/Director 
 Recovery Dev’t. Corp. Chairman/President/Director 
 Novateknika Land Corp. Corp. Secretary/Director 
 Pacific Rehouse Corp. Chairman/President/Director 
 Crisanta Realty Dev’t. Corp. Corp. Secretary/Director 
 Palawan Estate Corp. Corp. Secretary/Director 
 Philippine International Airways Corp. Secretary/Director 
 Philfoods Asia, Inc. Chairman/President/Director 
 Sourthernpec Phils., Inc. Corp. Treasurer/Director 
 Manila Bay Front Hotels, Inc. Chairman/Director 
 Poly Premier Property Dev’t. Corp. President/Director 
 Wanda Prime Property Dev’t., Inc. Chairman/Director 
 North Luzon Premier Dev’t. Corp. Chairman/Director 
 Pacific Concorde Corp Chairman/Director 
 Forum Holdings Corp Chairman/President/Director 
 Rexlon Realty Group, Inc. Corp. Secretary/Director 
 Heritage Pacific Corp. Asst. Corp. Sec./Director 
 Seabrook Resources & Dev’t. Corp. Chairman/President/Director 
 Recovery Real Estate Corp. Chairman/President/Director 
 Shanghai Global Estate Ventures Corp. President/Director 
 Altai Philippines Mining Corp. Director 
 Bulacan Harbour Dev’t. Corp. Asst. Corp. Sec./Director 
 Bulacan Country Garden Dev’t. Corp. Chairman/President/Director 

 
 

Atty. Lamberto B. Mercado, Jr.   
Director Asia Healthcare, Inc. Director 
Filipino FEZ-EAC Holdings, Inc. Director 
60 years old Wellex Industries, Inc. Director  
Bachelor of Laws (L.L.B.) Acesite (Phils.) Hotels Corp. Chief Risk Officer/Director 
Ateneo de Manila University Metro Alliance Holdings & Equities Corp. Director/Compliance Officer 
School of Law Philippine National Construction Corp. Director 
 Consumer Product Distribution Services Director 
 Rexlon Realty Group, Inc. Assist. Cop. Sec./Director 
 Wellex Mining Corp. Corp. Secretary/Director 
 Southernpec Phils., Inc. Corp. Secretary/Director 
 Dubai Gold Mining Corp. Corp. Secretary/Director 
 Sands Mining & Dev’t. Corp. Director 
 Bulacan Harbour Dev’t. Corp. Corp. Secretary/Director 
 Wanda Prime Property Dev’t., Inc. Director 
 Seabrook Resources & Devt Corp. Corp. Secretary/Director 
 Country Garden Agri-Tourism Dev’t., Inc. President 
 Bulacan Country Garden Dev’t. Corp. Director 
   
   
Richard L. Ricardo   
Investor Relations Officer/Director 
Filipino 

Wellex Industries, Inc. Corp. Treasurer/Investor 
Relations Officer/Director 
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60 years old  
B.S. in Business Management  

Waterfront Philippines, Inc. Corporate Affairs 
Officer/Compliance Officer 

A.B. in Economics 
Ateneo de Manila University 

Acesite (Phils.) Hotel Corp. Vice President for Corporate 
Affairs/Compliance Officer 

 Metro Alliance Holdings & Equities Corp. Corp. Treasurer/Investor 
Relations Officer 

 Philippine Estates Corp. Corp. Treasurer/Investor 
Relations Officer/Director 

 The Wellex Group, Inc. Corp. Secretary/Director 
 Rexlon Realty Group, Inc. Vice President/Director 
 Westland Pacific Properties Corp. Corp. Secretary/Director 
 Wellex Petroleum, Inc. Corp. Treasurer/Director 
 Wellex Mining Corp. Assist. Corp. Sec./Director 
 Bocaue Prime Estate Corp. Corp. Secretary/Director 
 Taguig Lake City Dev’t. Corp. Corp. Secretary/Director 
 Pacific Wide Holdings, Inc. Corp. Treasurer/Director 
 Dubai Gold Mining Corp. Chairman/President/Director 
 Sand Mining & Dev’t. Corp. Corp. Treasurer/Director 
 Manila Bay Front Hotels, Inc. Corp. Treasurer/Director 
 Shanghai Global Estate Ventures Corp. Corp. Secretary/Director 
 Bulacan Country Garden Dev’t. Corp. Corp. Secretary/Director 
 Alliance Energy Power & Dev’t. Inc. President/Director 
   
   
Atty. Arthur R. Ponsaran   
Director Corporate Counsels, Phils. Law Office Managing Partner 
Filipino Acesite (Phils.) Hotel Corp. Corp. Secretary/Director 
81 years old Waterfront Phils., Inc. Corp. Secretary 
CPA Lawyer Philippine Estate Corp. Director 
Business Administration   
Major in Accounting   
University of the East   
Bachelor of Laws   
University of the Philippines   
   
   
Renato C. Francisco   
Independent Director Wellex Industries Inc Independent Director 
Filipino Philippine Estates Corp. Independent Director 
75 years old Acesite (Phils.) Hotel Corp. Independent Director 
Bachelor of Laws Waterfront Phil., Inc. Independent Director 
Ateneo de Manila University   
B.A. in English and Philosophy   
San Beda College   

 
 

Sergio Antonio S. Ortiz-Luis 
Independent Director 
50 years old 
Bachelor of Fine Arts 
University of Sto. Tomas 
 
 

Wellex Industries, Inc. 
The Events Hive 
Canadian Tourism and Hospitality 
Institute 
Arena Islands Beach Resorts, Inc. 
Esports World Federation 
Philippine Chamber of Commerce and 
Industry Youth Committee 
Philippine Young Entrepreneurs 
Association – NCR 
First Kick for Peace 
Brick Traders 

Independent Director 
Sole Proprietor 
Director 
 
Director/Vice President 
Vice President 
Vice Chairman 
President 
 
 
Vice President 
Proprietor 

   
Josaias T. Dela Cruz   
Independent Director Wellex Industries, Inc. Independent Director 
Filipino Philippine Estates Corp. Independent Director 
63 years old JTDC Spinmeister Laundry Service Sole Proprietor 
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B.S. in Business Management 
Ateneo de Manila University 
 

  

Aristeo R. Cruz   
Independent Director Metro Alliance Holdings & Equities Corp. Independent Director 
Filipino Wellex Industries, Inc. Independent Director 
58 years old Acesite (Phils.) Hotel Corp. Independent Director 
CPA Lawyer Waterfront Philippines Inc Independent Director 
B.S. in Commerce Major in Liberty Bank (A Rural Bank), Inc. Vice-President 
Accountancy 
De La Salle University 

Meycauayan College, Inc. Vice-Chairman of the Board,  
Executive Vice-President 

Bachelor of Laws (LLB) 
New Era University 
 

Cruz Altares & Associates Law Office 
(formerly Cruz, Castro & Altares Law 
Office) 

Founding and Managing Partner 

 Idealland Realty & Dev’t. Corp. President and Chief Operating 
Officer (COO) 

 Statosphere Realty & Dev’t. Corp. President and Chief Operating 
Officer (COO) 

 Waterstreet Realty Corp. President 
 Jose & Luz Locsin Foundation President 
 Justino Emilia Realty and Management & 

Dev’t. Corp. 
Corp. Secretary 

 
 

  

Omar M. Guinomla   
Director Recovery Real Estate Corp. Director 
Filipino Wellex Industries, Inc. Director  
52 years old Pacific Rehouse Corp. Director 
A.B. Management Orient Pacific Corp. Assist. Corp. Sec./Director 
De La Salle University Recovery Dev’t. Corp. Assist. Corp. Sec./Director 
Master’s in Business  Philippine International Airways Corp. Treasurer/Director 
Administration  Continental Wire & Cable Corp. Director 
Ateneo de Manila University Shanghai Resources Corp. Chairman/President/Director 
 Calinan Star Mining, Inc. Director 
 Dubai Gold Mining Corp. Director 
 Sands Mining & Dev’t. Corp. Corp. Secretary/Director 
 Manila Bay Front Hotels, Inc. Corp. Secretary/Director 
 Silverquest Mining Resources Inc. Corp. Treasurer/Director 
 Bulacan Fortune Land Dev’t. Corp. Corp. Secretary/Director 
 Triton Construction & Dev’t. Corp. Corp. Secretary/Director 

 
 
 

  

Amando J. Ponsaran, Jr.   
Corporate Secretary Philippine Estates Corp. Assistant Corporate Secretary 
Filipino 
54 years old 
BSBA-Finance/Marketing 

Corporate Counsels, Phils. Law Offices 
 
Wellex Industries, Inc. 

Senior Manager – Corporate 
Services Group 
Corporate Secretary 

University of San Agustin – Iloilo Consumer Products Distribution Services Inc Corporate Secretary 
Bachelor of Laws   
Arellano Law School/Philippine   
Christian University   
 
 

  

Atty. Dorothy Jean M. Aclan 
Asst. Corporate Secretary 
Filipino 
31 years old 
Bachelor of Science in Legal 
Mangement  
San Beda College – Manila  
Juris Doctor  
San Beda College – Alabang  

Corporate Counsels Phils. Law Offices 
M.R. Dimaano Law Office 
Mayo Law Office 
San Beda College-Manila Centralized Bar 
Operations 

Associate Lawyer (present) 
Associate Lawyer  
Paralegal 
Member 
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Annabelle T. Abunda   
Finance and Compliance Officer 
Filipino 

Pacific Rehouse Corp. Finance & Administration 
Manager 

48 years old Pacific Wide Holdings, Inc. Accounting Manager 
CPA and Licensed Real Estate  Wellex Industries, Inc. Finance and Compliance Officer 
Broker Metro Alliance Holdings & Equities Corp. Finance Officer 
B.S. in Accountancy   
University of the Philippines in   
the Visayas   

 
Significant Employees 
There are no other employees other than the officers mentioned in the preceding subsection who are expected 
to make significant contribution to the business. 
 
Family Relationships 
Ms. Elvira A. Ting, the President, is the aunt of Mr. Kenneth T. Gatchalian, the Treasurer. There are no family 
relationships up to the fourth civil degree either by consanguinity or affinity among directors, executive officers, 
persons nominated or chosen by the corporation to become directors, or executive officers other than the 
above. 
Involvement in Certain Legal Proceedings 
A case of illegal dismissal and claims for unpaid salaries, back wages, separation pay and damages 
was filed by an employee (logistic coordinator), on February 1996. The respondents on the said case 
are James Dale Hood, Air Philippines International (Formerly Cophil Exploration & Drilling Co., Air 
Philippines International, Inc.) and Forum Exploration, Inc.  

The management has its lawyer take care of the settlement and will plan to meet with the Sheriff or 
labor officer in-charge with the case. As of December 31, 2024, the claimant didn’t make any demands 
or appeared before the Company’s principal office address to enforce the said writ of execution.  
 
Item 10. Executive Compensation 

Summary of Compensation Table - Annual Compensation 
The following table lists the name of the Corporation’s Directors and Executive Officers Annual 
Compensation for the three most recent years. 
 

Name and Principal Position Year Salary Bonus Other Annual 
Compensation 

Atty. Ruben D. Torres 
Chairman 

2024 - - 10,000 
2023 - - 10,000 
2022 - - 10,000 

Elvira A. Ting 
President/CEO/Director 

2024 - - - 
2023 - - - 
2022 - - - 

Kenneth T. Gatchalian 
Treasurer/Director 

2024 - - - 
2023 - - - 
2022 - - - 

Renato C. Francisco 
Independent Director 

2024 - - 10,000 
2023 - - 10,000 
2022 - - 10,000 

Aristeo R. Cruz 
Independent Director 

2024 - - 10,000 
2023 - - 10,000 
2022 - - 10,000 

 Sergio R. Ortiz-Luis, Jr. 
Director  

2024 - - - 
2023   10,000 
2022   10,000 

Josaias T. Dela Cruz 
Independent Director 

2024 - - 10,000 
2023 - - 10,000 
2022 - - 10,000 
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Sergio Antonio S. Ortiz-Luis 
Independent Director 

2024 - - 10,000 
2023 - - - 
2022 - - - 

Atty. Lamberto B. Mercado, Jr., 
Omar M. Guinomla, Richard L. Ricardo, 
Atty. Arthur Ponsaran & all other officers 

2024 - - - 
2023 - - - 
2022 - - - 

 
Compensation of Directors 
Except for a nominal amount of per diem amounting to ₱10,000 during attendance in regular 
meetings, there are no standard arrangements with regard to election, any bonus, profit sharing, 
pension/retirement plan, granting of any option, warrant or right to purchase any securities. There are 
no other arrangements or consulting contracts or other form of services with directors. 

Due to tight cash position of the Company, it was agreed that only External and Independent Directors 
were given a per diem of ₱10,000 during attendance in regular meetings. For the year 2024, here is the 
list of Directors who received a per diem: 
 
 Name Position Per Diem 

1. Ruben D. Torres Regular Director 10,000.00 
2. Renato C. Francisco Independent Director 10,000.00 
3. Josaias T. Dela Cruz Independent Director 10,000.00 
4. Aristeo R. Cruz Independent Director 10,000.00 
5. Sergio Antonio S. Ortiz-Luis Independent Director 10,000.00 

 
Employment Contracts and Termination of Employment and Change-in-Control Arrangements 
There is no employment contract and termination of employees and change-in-control arrangement 
with directors and executive officers. 
 
Warrants and Options Outstanding: Repricing 
There are no warrants and options outstanding held by Forum Pacific Inc.'s CEO, executive officers 
and all officers and directors as a group. There is no repricing made. 
 
Item 11. Security Ownership of Certain Record and Beneficial Owners and Management  
Security Ownership of Certain Record and Beneficial Owners 
As of December 31, 2024, Forum Pacific, Inc., knows no one who beneficially owns in excess of 10% of 
Forum Pacific, Inc. common stock except as set forth in the table below: 
 

Title of 
Class 

Name, address of Record 
Owner and Relationship with 

Issuer 

Name of Beneficial 
Owner and 

Relationship with 
Record Owner 

Citizenship 
 No. of 
Shares 

Held  

% of total 
o/s 

shares 

Common 
International Polymer Corp., 
T. Santiago St., Canumay, 
Valenzuela City (Stockholder) 

same as record 
owner (see note 1) Filipino 496,887,494 26.501 

Common 

PCD Nominee Corp. 
37/F Tower 1, The Enterprise 
Center, 6766 Ayala Ave., Cor. 
Paseo de Roxas, Makati City 
(Stockholder) 

PCD Participants 
and their clients (see 
note 2) 

Filipino 440,155,274 23.475 

Common 

The Wellex Group Inc.,  
35th Flr., One Corporate Center, 
Doña Julia Vargas cor, Meralco 
ave., Ortigas Center, Pasig City 
(Stockholder) 

same as record 
owner (see note 3) Filipino 376,950,000 20.104 

1International Polymer Corporation (“IPC”) is a significant shareholder of the Company. As per By-laws and the 
Corporation Code, the Board of Directors of IPC has the power to decide how the IPC shares in Forum Pacific Inc. are 
to be voted. 
2The clients of each company have the power to decide how their shares are to be voted. Natural persons authorized to 
vote the shares of PCD Nominee cannot be identified until the proxy shall have been appointed in writing by the 
stockholder  himself of by his duly authorized attorney-in-fact.  
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3The Wellex Group, Inc. (“TWGI”) is a significant shareholder of the Company. As per By-laws and the Corporation 
Code, the Board of Directors of TWGI has the power to decide how the TWGI shares in Forum Pacific Inc. are to be 
voted. 

Security Ownership of Management 
As of December 31, 2024 the security ownership of individual directors, executive officers and 
nominees of Forum Pacific Inc. is as follows: 
 

Title of Class Name of Beneficial Owner 
Amount and 

Nature of 
Beneficial 
Ownership 

Citizenship Percent of 
Class 

Common Ruben D. Torres 100 (direct) Filipino 0.000 
Common Elvira A. Ting 400,001 (direct) Filipino 0.021 
Common Kenneth T. Gatchalian 100 (direct) Filipino 0.000 
Common Arthur R. Ponsaran 1 (direct) Filipino 0.000 
Common Lamberto B. Mercado, Jr. 100 (direct) Filipino 0.000 
Common Richard L. Ricardo 100 (direct) Filipino 0.000 
Common Omar M. Guinomla 100 (direct) Filipino 0.000 
Common Renato C. Francisco 100 (direct) Filipino 0.000 
Common Sergio R. Ortiz-Luis, Jr. 100 (direct) Filipino 0.000 
Common Josaias T. Dela Cruz 100 (direct) Filipino 0.000 
Common Aristeo R. Cruz 20,000 (direct) Filipino 0.001 
All directors and Officers as a group                420,802  0.022 

 
Voting Trust Holders of 5% or More  
There are no voting trust holders of 5% or more. 
 
Changes in Control  
There is no change in control of Forum Pacific Inc. and there is no arrangement, which may result in 
change control. 
 
Item 12. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions 
The Company, in the normal course of business, has transactions with related parties. Such 
transactions are unsecured and partially impaired. 
 
The Company’s advances to Forum Exploration, Inc. (FEI) pertain to the carrying value of exploration 
assets transferred by the Company in prior years amounting to ₱171.6 million gross of allowance for 
impairment loss of ₱171.6 million as of December 31, 2024 and 2023. No transaction in the account 
balance was recognized for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023. This is unsecured, non-
interest bearing and with no definite period of terms. 
 
The Company’s advances to The Wellex Group, Inc. (TWGI) consist of advances granted to finance 
their working capital requirements with outstanding balance of ₱312,982,478 and ₱309,970,574 as of 
December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively. On December 16, 2020, TWGI issued a new promissory 
note amounting to ₱296,659,777 in favor of the Company. The term of the loan is five years maturing on 
December 15, 2025, bearing an interest of 2% per annum. Accrued interest receivable for this promissory 
note amounted to ₱23,979,996 and ₱18,046,801 as at December 31, 2024 and 2023. The Company 
entered into the following contracts with TWGI: a) leases an office space from TWGI and b) consultancy 
agreement with TWGI, whereby the latter will provide corporate planning and financial services on its 
various corporate functions and undertakings. Payments for the lease and management fees are being 
offset against intercompany receivables. Both contracts for rental and consultancy have been renewed 
thrice since then and is currently valid until April 30, 2026.  
 
The Company’s advances from Forum Exploration, Inc. Ltd. (FEI-Ltd.) pertains to received cash 
advances to finance the Company’s acquisition of 60% stockholdings of Forum Coal Cebu Holdings, 
Inc. (FCCHI) in prior years amounting to USD82,922. The amount was restated to peso value, the 
Company’s functional currency, as at balance sheet date. Restated balance amounted to ₱4.8 million 
and ₱4.6 million as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively. The Company recognized a foreign 
exchange gain/(loss) of ₱205,232 and ₱31,925 in 2024 and 2023, respectively. 
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Part IV – CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

 
 

Please refer to separate “Annual Corporate Governance Report (ACGR)” to be submitted to 
Securities and Exchange Commission. 
 
 
 

Part V - EXHIBITS AND SCHEDULES 
 
Item 13 Exhibits and Reports on SEC Form 17- C 
Exhibits 
Financial Statements 
• Statement of Management's Responsibility for Financial Statements 
• Report of Independent Public Accountants 
• Statements of Financial Position as at December 31, 2024 and 2023 
• Statements of Comprehensive Income for each of the three years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 

and 2022 
• Statements of Changes in Equity for each of the three years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 and 

2022 
• Statements of Cash Flows for each of the three years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022 
• Notes to Financial Statements 
 
Supplementary Schedules 
Report of Independent Public Accountants on Supplementary Schedules: 
• Financial Asset at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI) 
• Amounts Receivables from Directors, Officers, Employees, Related Parties and Principal 

Stockholders (Other than Affiliates) 
• Amounts Receivable from Related Parties which are Eliminated during the Consolidation of Financial 

Statements 
• Long-term Debt 
• Indebtedness of Related Parties 
• Guarantees of Securities of Other Issuers 
• Capital Stock  
• List of Top 20 Stockholders of Record 
• Reconciliation of Retained Earnings Available for Dividend Declaration 
 
Reports on SEC Form 17-C  
January 11, 2024 
The Corporation submitted its Public Ownership Report as disclosed also in the Philippine Stock 
Exchange for the period ended December 31, 2023. 
 
January 15, 2024 
The Corporation submitted its List of Top 100 Stockholders as disclosed also in the Philippine Stock 
Exchange for the period ended December 31, 2023. 
 
January 31, 2024 
The Corporation submitted its disclosure of the acceptance by the Board of Directors of the resignation of 
Mr. Sergio R. Ortiz-Luis, Jr. as regular director effective immediately. The resignation was due to 
professional and personal reason. 
 
February 5, 2024 
The Corporation submitted its disclosure of the election of new independent director, Mr. Sergio Antonio 
S. Ortiz-Luis effective immediately.  
 
March 25, 2024 
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The Corporation submitted its announcement to postpone the annual stockholders’ meeting to June 11, 
2024, Tuesday, instead on the 3rd Monday of April as stated on its By-Laws due to time constraint to 
prepare all documentary and meeting materials. This is also disclosed in the Philippine Stock Exchange. 
April 11, 2024 
The Corporation submitted its Public Ownership Report and List of Top 100 Stockholders as disclosed 
also in the Philippine Stock Exchange for the period ended March 31, 2024. 
 
April 17, 2024 
The Corporation submitted its Integrated Annual Corporate Governance Report for the Year Ended 
December 31, 2023 which is also disclosed in the Philippine Stock Exchange. 
 
April 18, 2024 
The Corporation submitted its Special Form for Financial Statements for Forum Pacific Inc. as of 
December 31, 2023 which is also disclosed in the Philippine Stock Exchange. 
 
May 2, 2024 
The Corporation submitted its Notice of Annual Stockholders’ Meeting on June 11, 2024 to stockholders 
of record as of May 16, 2024 as approved by the Board of Directors on its meeting with the following 
agenda: 

1. Call to order 
2. Certification of Notice and Quorum 
3. Approval of the Minutes of the Previous Stockholders’ Meeting for the year 2023 
4. President’s Report to the Stockholders for the Year 2023 and Approval of the Annual Report 
5. Ratification of the Acts of the Board and Management 
6. Election of the of Board Directors to Serve for the Term 2024-2025 
7. Amendment of the Article II, Section 1 of the Corporation’s By-Laws with respect to: 

Changing the Date of the Annual Meeting from Every 3rd Monday of April to Every 3rd 
Tuesday of July 

8. Appointment of External Auditors 
9. Appointment of External Counsel 
10. Other matters 
11. Adjournment 

The Notice was published in the general circulation (both in print and digital) on May 20 & 21, 2024 
through Manila Bulletin and Business Mirror. Annual Stockholders Meeting was held via remote 
communication. 

June 11, 2024 
The Corporation submitted the result of the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting and the Organizational Meeting 
of the Board of Directors held last June 11, 2024 via remote communication. 
 
June 19, 2024 
The Corporation submitted its General Information Sheet for the year 2024 as disclosed also in the 
Philippine Stock Exchange. 
 
July 5, 2024 
The Corporation submitted its List of Top 100 Stockholders as disclosed also in the Philippine Stock 
Exchange for the period ended June 30, 2024. 
 
July 8, 2024 
The Corporation submitted its Public Ownership Report as disclosed also in the Philippine Stock 
Exchange for the period ended June 30, 2024. 
 
October 10, 2024 
The Corporation submitted its Public Ownership Report and List of Top 100 Stockholders for the quarter 
ended September 30, 2024 as disclosed also in the Philippine Stock Exchange. 
 
October 22, 2024 
The Corporation reported the resignation of Atty. Arsenio A. Alfiler, Jr. as Corporate Secretary of the 
Corporation effective on October 31, 2024. 
 
October 29, 2024 
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The Corporation reported the appointment of Mr. Amando J. Ponsaran, Jr. and Atty. Dorothy Jean M. 
Aclan as Corporate Secretary and Asst. Corporate Secretary by the Board of Directors effective 
November 1, 2024. 
November 6, 2024 
The Corporation submitted an amended General Information Sheet for the year 2024 as disclosed also in 
the Philippine Stock Exchange. 
 
November 19, 2024 
The Corporation submitted copies of directors’ and key officers’ certificates that attended the Good 
Corporate Governance Seminar held last November 12, 2024 via remote communication, conducted by 
the Risks, Opportunities, Assessment and Management (ROAM), Inc. a Corporate Governance training 
provider accredited by the SEC. 
 
January 14, 2025 
The Corporation submitted its List of Top 100 Stockholders as disclosed also in the Philippine Stock 
Exchange for the period ended December 31, 2024. 
 
January 15, 2025 
The Corporation submitted its Public Ownership Report as disclosed also in the Philippine Stock 
Exchange for the period ended December 31, 2024. 
 
April 4, 2025 
The Corporation reported the approval of the Securities and Exchange Commission of the filed Amended 
By-Laws dated March 20, 2025 and was released dated April 3, 2025. 
 
April 14, 2025 
The Corporation submitted its List of Top 100 Stockholders and Public Ownership Report as disclosed 
also in the Philippine Stock Exchange for the period ended March 31, 2025. 
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Annex A: Reporting Template 
(For additional guidance on how to answer the Topics, organizations may refer to Annex B: Topic Guide) 

Contextual Information 
Company Details 

Name of Organization FORUM PACIFIC, INC. 

Location of Headquarters 35th Flr. One Corporate Center, Dona Julia Vargas, cor. Meralco Ave., 
Ortigas Center, Pasig City 

Location of Operations PHILIPPINES 

Report Boundary: Legal entities (e.g. 
subsidiaries) included in this report* 

NONE 

Business Model, including Primary 
Activities, Brands, Products, and 
Services 

Holding Company – Engage in investing, purchasing and acquiring 
assets of any kind and description 

Reporting Period For the year ended 2024
Highest Ranking Person responsible 
for this report 

Annabelle Abunda – Finance and Compliance Officer 

*If you are a holding company, you could have an option whether to report on the holding company only or
include the subsidiaries. However, please consider the principle of materiality when defining your report
boundary.

Materiality Process 
Explain how you applied the materiality principle (or the materiality process) in identifying your material 
topics.1 

For its initial submission of Sustainability Report, Forum Pacific Inc. carefully assessed the materiality impact 
of the Company related to economic, environmental and social topics. The Company has considered different 
factors in evaluating the materiality such as company policies, laws and regulations of the local government 
and current issues in the economy. 

The reference used by the Company is the Sustainability Accounting Standards Board (SASB) Map from the 
Sustainability Reporting Guidelines for Public Listed Companies issued by Securities and Exchange Commission 
(SEC).  

As per assessment, since there’s no operation and employee for the year 2024, the Company identified that 
it most likely to affect only two of the topics: 

A. Economic Impact – Economic Performance, Procurement Practices
B. Social Impact – Supply Chain Management and Data Security

1 See GRI 102-46 (2016) for more guidance. 

https://www.globalreporting.org/standards/media/1037/gri-102-general-disclosures-2016.pdf#page=34


2 

ECONOMIC 

Economic Performance 
Currently, the Company has no operation and employee. These metrics and targets will be developed in tune 
with the nature of the businesses that will be entered into.

Direct Economic Value Generated and Distributed 
 Disclosure Amount Units 

Direct economic value generated (revenue) 0.00 PhP 

Direct economic value distributed: 

a. Operating costs 2,386,162 PhP 

b. Employee wages and benefits 0.00 PhP 

c. Payments to suppliers, other operating costs 0.00 Php 

d. Dividends given to stockholders and interest payments to loan
providers

0.00 PhP 

e. Taxes given to government 946,095 PhP 

f. Investments to community (e.g. donations, CSR) 35,000 PhP 

What is the impact and where does it 
occur?  What is the organization’s 
involvement in the impact? 

Which stakeholders are 
affected? 

Management Approach 

The impact is seen on the generation of 
zero income due to the none operation 
of the Company. 

Directors, Stockholders, 
Service Providers and 
Government 

Management and directors have 
committed to provide full financial 
support to the Company in order to 
meet its working capital requirements 
and settle obligations as they fall due 
especially government liabilities. 

What are the Risk/s Identified? Which stakeholders are 
affected? 

Management Approach 

The risk is the continuous payments of 
obligatory expenses such as government 
liabilities, fees, etc. 

Directors, Stockholders, 
Service Providers and 
Government 

The management continuously evaluate 
Company’s financial status by 
undertaking different approach such as 
considering to invest into potential 
renewable energy sources and 
advancing to affiliates and design 
collection programs. 

What are the Opportunity/ies 
Identified? 

Which stakeholders are 
affected? 

Management Approach 

The opportunity is the prompt payments 
of taxes, lease and fees such as 
professional, consultancy and 
membership fees.  

Directors, Service Providers 
and Government 

The Company commits to continuously 
pay government and suppliers on time 
to maintain good relationship and avoid 
penalties. 

Climate-related risks and opportunities2 
Currently, the Company has no operations and not yet implement certain metrics and targets to assess and 
manage the relevant climate-related risks and opportunity at this moment. These metrics and targets will be 
developed in tune with the nature of the businesses that will be entered into. 

Governance Strategy Risk Management Metrics and Targets 
Not Applicable Not Applicable Not Applicable Not Applicable 

2 Adopted from the Recommendations of the Task Force on Climate-Related Financial Disclosures. The TCFD Recommendations apply to 

non-financial companies and financial-sector organizations, including banks, insurance companies, asset managers and asset owners. 
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Recommended Disclosures 
Not Applicable Not Applicable Not Applicable Not Applicable 

Procurement Practices 
Currently, the Company has no operation. These metrics and targets will be further developed in tune with 
the nature of the businesses that will be entered into.

Proportion of spending on local suppliers 
Disclosure Quantity Units 

Percentage of procurement budget used for significant locations of 
operations that is spent on local suppliers 

100 % 

What is the impact and where does it 
occur?  What is the organization’s 
involvement in the impact? 

Which stakeholders 
are affected? 

Management Approach 

All of the procurement budget of the 
company was spent on local service 
providers and suppliers of the company. 

Service Providers, 
and Suppliers 

The Company commits to continuously keep a 
good relationship with the stakeholders by 
paying its dues on time. 

What are the Risk/s Identified? Which stakeholders 
are affected? 

Management Approach 

The present service providers or suppliers 
may not be sufficient to meet the standard 
requirements of the Company 

Service Providers 
and Suppliers 

The Company may open doors to other service 
providers or suppliers that may give good 
quality of service or supplies. 

What are the Opportunity/ies Identified? Which stakeholders 
are affected? 

Management Approach 

The opportunity to use a wide range of 
local service provider or suppliers. 

Service Providers 
and Suppliers 

The Company may use other service 
providers/suppliers in the available market. 

Anti-corruption 
Currently, the Company has no operation and employee but has Anti-Corruption Policies and Procedures. 
These metrics and targets will be developed in tune with the nature of the businesses that will be entered 
into.

Training on Anti-corruption Policies and Procedures 
Disclosure Quantity Units 

Percentage of employees to whom the organization’s anti-corruption 
policies and procedures have been communicated to 

0 % 

Percentage of business partners to whom the organization’s anti-
corruption policies and procedures have been communicated to 

100 % 

Percentage of directors and management that have received anti-
corruption training 

100 % 

Percentage of employees that have received anti-corruption training 0 % 

What is the impact and where does it 
occur?  What is the organization’s 
involvement in the impact? 

Which stakeholders are 
affected? 

Management Approach 

The Company has no material impact at 
this moment under this category. 

What are the Risk/s Identified? Which stakeholders are 
affected? 

Management Approach 

There’s no risk/s identified at this 
moment for this category. 

Not applicable Not applicable

Not applicable Not applicable



4 

What are the Opportunity/ies 
Identified? 

Which stakeholders are 
affected? 

Management Approach 

There’s no opportunity/ies  identified at 
this moment for this category. 

Incidents of Corruption 
Disclosure Quantity Units 

Number of incidents in which directors were removed or 
disciplined for corruption  

0 # 

Number of incidents in which employees were dismissed or 
disciplined for corruption 

0 # 

Number of incidents when contracts with business partners were 
terminated due to incidents of corruption 

0 # 

What is the impact and where does it 
occur?  What is the organization’s 
involvement in the impact? 

Which stakeholders are 
affected? 

Management Approach 

The Company has no material impact at 
this moment under this category. 

What are the Risk/s Identified? Which stakeholders are 
affected? 

Management Approach 

There’s no risk/s identified at this 
moment for this category. 

What are the Opportunity/ies 
Identified? 

Which stakeholders are 
affected? 

Management Approach 

There’s no opportunity/ies  identified at 
this moment for this category. 

Not applicable Not applicable
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ENVIRONMENT 

Resource Management 
Currently, the Company has no operation. These metrics and targets will be developed in tune with the nature 
of the businesses that will be entered into.

Energy consumption within the organization: 
Disclosure Quantity Units 

Energy consumption (renewable sources) 0 GJ 

Energy consumption (gasoline) 0 GJ 

Energy consumption (LPG) 0 GJ 

Energy consumption (diesel) 0 GJ 

Energy consumption (electricity) 0 kWh 

Reduction of energy consumption 
Disclosure Quantity Units 

Energy reduction (gasoline) 0 GJ 

Energy reduction (LPG) 0 GJ 

Energy reduction (diesel) 0 GJ 

Energy reduction (electricity) 0 kWh 

Energy reduction (gasoline) 0 GJ 

What is the impact and where does it 
occur?  What is the organization’s 
involvement in the impact? 

Which stakeholders are 
affected? 

Management Approach 

The Company has no material impact at 
this moment under this category. 

What are the Risk/s Identified? Which stakeholders are 
affected? 

Management Approach 

There’s no risk/s identified at this 
moment for this category. 

What are the Opportunity/ies 
Identified? 

Which stakeholders are 
affected? 

Management Approach 

There’s no opportunity/ies  identified at 
this moment for this category. 

Water consumption within the organization 
Disclosure Quantity Units 

Water withdrawal 0 Cubic meters 

Water consumption 0 Cubic meters 

Water recycled and reused 0 Cubic meters 

What is the impact and where does it 
occur?  What is the organization’s 
involvement in the impact? 

Which stakeholders are 
affected? 

Management Approach 

The Company has no material impact at 
this moment under this category. 

What are the Risk/s Identified? Which stakeholders are 
affected? 

Management Approach 

There’s no risk/s identified at this 
moment for this category. 
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What are the Opportunity/ies 
Identified? 

Which stakeholders are 
affected? 

Management Approach 

There’s no opportunity/ies  identified at 
this moment for this category. 

Materials used by the organization 
Disclosure Quantity Units 

Materials used by weight or volume 

 renewable 0 kg/liters 

 non-renewable 0 kg/liters 

Percentage of recycled input materials used to manufacture the 
organization’s primary products and services 

0 % 

What is the impact and where does it 
occur?  What is the organization’s 
involvement in the impact? 

Which stakeholders are 
affected? 

Management Approach 

The Company has no material impact at 
this moment under this category. 

What are the Risk/s Identified? Which stakeholders are 
affected? 

Management Approach 

There’s no risk/s identified at this 
moment for this category. 

What are the Opportunity/ies 
Identified? 

Which stakeholders are 
affected? 

Management Approach 

There’s no opportunity/ies  identified at 
this moment for this category. 

Ecosystems and biodiversity (whether in upland/watershed or coastal/marine) 
Disclosure Quantity Units 

Operational sites owned, leased, managed in, or adjacent to, protected areas and 
areas of high biodiversity value outside protected areas 

0 (identify all 
sites) 

Habitats protected or restored 0 ha 

IUCN3 Red List species and national conservation list species with habitats in areas 
affected by operations 

0 (list) 

What is the impact and where does it 
occur?  What is the organization’s 
involvement in the impact? 

Which stakeholders are 
affected? 

Management Approach 

The Company has no material impact at 
this moment under this category. 

What are the Risk/s Identified? Which stakeholders are 
affected? 

Management Approach 

There’s no risk/s identified at this 
moment for this category. 

What are the Opportunity/ies 
Identified? 

Which stakeholders are 
affected? 

Management Approach 

There’s no opportunity/ies  identified at 
this moment for this category. 

3 International Union for Conservation of Nature 
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Environmental impact management 
Currently, the Company has no operation. These metrics and targets will be developed in tune with the nature 
of the businesses that will be entered into.

Air Emissions 
GHG 

Disclosure Quantity Units 

Direct (Scope 1) GHG Emissions 0 Tonnes CO2e 

Energy indirect (Scope 2) GHG Emissions 0 Tonnes CO2e 

Emissions of ozone-depleting substances (ODS) 0 Tonnes 

What is the impact and where does it 
occur?  What is the organization’s 
involvement in the impact? 

Which stakeholders are 
affected? 

Management Approach 

The Company has no material impact at 
this moment under this category. 

What are the Risk/s Identified? Which stakeholders are 
affected? 

Management Approach 

There’s no risk/s identified at this 
moment for this category. 

What are the Opportunity/ies 
Identified? 

Which stakeholders are 
affected? 

Management Approach 

There’s no opportunity/ies  identified at 
this moment for this category. 

Air pollutants 
Disclosure Quantity Units 

NOx 0 kg 

SOx 0 kg 

Persistent organic pollutants (POPs) 0 kg 

Volatile organic compounds (VOCs) 0 kg 

Hazardous air pollutants (HAPs) 0 kg 

Particulate matter (PM) 0 kg 

What is the impact and where does it 
occur?  What is the organization’s 
involvement in the impact? 

Which stakeholders are 
affected? 

Management Approach 

The Company has no material impact at 
this moment under this category. 

What are the Risk/s Identified? Which stakeholders are 
affected? 

Management Approach 

There’s no risk/s identified at this 
moment for this category. 

What are the Opportunity/ies 
Identified? 

Which stakeholders are 
affected? 

Management Approach 

There’s no opportunity/ies  identified at 
this moment for this category. 



8 

Solid and Hazardous Wastes 
Currently, the Company has no operation. These metrics and targets will be developed in tune with the 
nature of the businesses that will be entered into.

Solid Waste 
Disclosure Quantity Units 

Total solid waste generated 0 kg 

 Reusable 0 kg 

 Recyclable 0 kg 

 Composted 0 kg 

 Incinerated 0 kg 

 Residuals/Landfilled 0 kg 

What is the impact and where does it 
occur?  What is the organization’s 
involvement in the impact? 

Which stakeholders are 
affected? 

Management Approach 

The Company has no material impact at 
this moment under this category. 

What are the Risk/s Identified? Which stakeholders are 
affected? 

Management Approach 

There’s no risk/s identified at this 
moment for this category. 

What are the Opportunity/ies 
Identified? 

Which stakeholders are 
affected? 

Management Approach 

There’s no opportunity/ies  identified at 
this moment for this category. 

Hazardous Waste 
Disclosure Quantity Units 

Total weight of hazardous waste generated 0 kg 

Total weight of hazardous waste transported 0 kg 

What is the impact and where does it 
occur?  What is the organization’s 
involvement in the impact? 

Which stakeholders are 
affected? 

Management Approach 

The Company has no material impact at 
this moment under this category. 

What are the Risk/s Identified? Which stakeholders are 
affected? 

Management Approach 

There’s no risk/s identified at this 
moment for this category. 

What are the Opportunity/ies 
Identified? 

Which stakeholders are 
affected? 

Management Approach 

There’s no opportunity/ies  identified at 
this moment for this category. 

Effluents 
Disclosure Quantity Units 

Total volume of water discharges 0 Cubic meters 

Percent of wastewater recycled 0 % 
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What is the impact and where does it 
occur?  What is the organization’s 
involvement in the impact? 

Which stakeholders are 
affected? 

Management Approach 

The Company has no material impact at 
this moment under this category. 

What are the Risk/s Identified? Which stakeholders are 
affected? 

Management Approach 

There’s no risk/s identified at this 
moment for this category. 

What are the Opportunity/ies 
Identified? 

Which stakeholders are 
affected? 

Management Approach 

There’s no opportunity/ies  identified at 
this moment for this category. 

Environmental compliance 
Non-compliance with Environmental Laws and Regulations 

Currently, the Company has no operation. These metrics and targets will be developed in tune with the nature 
of the businesses that will be entered into. 

Disclosure Quantity Units 

Total amount of monetary fines for non-compliance with 
environmental laws and/or regulations 

0 PhP 

No. of non-monetary sanctions for non-compliance with environmental 
laws and/or regulations 

0 # 

No. of cases resolved through dispute resolution mechanism 0 # 

What is the impact and where does it 
occur?  What is the organization’s 
involvement in the impact? 

Which stakeholders are 
affected? 

Management Approach 

The Company has no material impact at 
this moment under this category. 

What are the Risk/s Identified? Which stakeholders are 
affected? 

Management Approach 

There’s no risk/s identified at this 
moment for this category. 

What are the Opportunity/ies 
Identified? 

Which stakeholders are 
affected? 

Management Approach 

There’s no opportunity/ies  identified at 
this moment for this category. 
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SOCIAL 

Employee Management 
Currently, the Company has no operation and employee. These metrics and targets will be developed in tune 
with the nature of the businesses that will be entered into.

Employee Hiring and Benefits 
Employee data 

Disclosure Quantity Units 

Total number of employees4 

a. Number of female employees 0 # 

b. Number of male employees 0 # 

Attrition rate5 0 rate 

Ratio of lowest paid employee against minimum wage 0 ratio 

Employee benefits 
List of Benefits Y/N % of female employees 

who availed for the year 
% of male employees 
who availed for the year 

SSS NA NA NA 

PhilHealth NA NA NA 

Pag-ibig NA NA NA 

Parental leaves NA NA NA 

Vacation leaves NA NA NA 

Sick leaves NA NA NA 

Medical benefits (aside from PhilHealth)) NA NA NA 

Housing assistance (aside from Pag-ibig) NA NA NA 

Retirement fund (aside from SSS) NA NA NA 

Further education support NA NA NA 

Company stock options NA NA NA 

Telecommuting NA NA NA 

Flexible-working Hours NA NA NA 

(Others) NA NA NA 

What is the impact and where does it occur?  What is the 
organization’s involvement in the impact? 

Management Approach 

The Company has no material impact at this moment under 
this category. 

What are the Risk/s Identified? Management Approach 

There’s no risk/s identified at this moment for this category. 

What are the Opportunity/ies Identified? Management Approach 

There’s no opportunity/ies  identified at this moment for this 
category. 

Employee Training and Development 
Disclosure Quantity Units 

Total training hours provided to employees 

a. Female employees 0 hours 

b. Male employees 0 hours 

4 Employees are individuals who are in an employment relationship with the organization, according to national law or its application (GRI 

Standards 2016 Glossary) 
5 Attrition are = (no. of new hires – no. of turnover)/(average of total no. of employees of previous year and total no. of employees of current 

year) 

https://www.globalreporting.org/standards/media/1035/gri-standards-glossary-2016.pdf
https://www.globalreporting.org/standards/media/1035/gri-standards-glossary-2016.pdf
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Average training hours provided to employees 

a. Female employees 0 hours/employee 

b. Male employees 0 hours/employee 

What is the impact and where does it occur?  What is the 
organization’s involvement in the impact? 

Management Approach 

The Company has no material impact at this moment under 
this category. 

What are the Risk/s Identified? Management Approach 

There’s no risk/s identified at this moment for this category. 

What are the Opportunity/ies Identified? Management Approach 

There’s no opportunity/ies  identified at this moment for this 
category. 

Labor-Management Relations 
Disclosure Quantity Units 

% of employees covered with Collective Bargaining Agreements 0 % 

Number of consultations conducted with employees concerning 
employee-related policies  

0 # 

What is the impact and where does it occur?  What is the 
organization’s involvement in the impact? 

Management Approach 

The Company has no material impact at this moment under 
this category. 

What are the Risk/s Identified? Management Approach 

There’s no risk/s identified at this moment for this category. 

What are the Opportunity/ies Identified? Management Approach 

There’s no opportunity/ies  identified at this moment for this 
category. 

Diversity and Equal Opportunity 
Disclosure Quantity Units 

% of female workers in the workforce 0 % 

% of male workers in the workforce 0 % 

Number of employees from indigenous communities and/or 
vulnerable sector*  

0 # 

*Vulnerable sector includes, elderly, persons with disabilities, vulnerable women, refugees, migrants, internally displaced persons,
people living with HIV and other diseases, solo parents, and the poor or the base of the pyramid (BOP; Class D and E).

What is the impact and where does it occur?  What is the 
organization’s involvement in the impact? 

Management Approach 

The Company has no material impact at this moment under 
this category. 

What are the Risk/s Identified? Management Approach 

There’s no risk/s identified at this moment for this category. 

What are the Opportunity/ies Identified? Management Approach 

There’s no opportunity/ies  identified at this moment for this 
category. 
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Workplace Conditions, Labor Standards, and Human Rights 
Currently, the Company has no operation and employee. These metrics and targets will be developed in tune 
with the nature of the businesses that will be entered into.

Occupational Health and Safety 
Disclosure Quantity Units 

Safe Man-Hours 0 Man-hours 

No. of work-related injuries 0 # 

No. of work-related fatalities 0 # 

No. of work related ill-health 0 # 

No. of safety drills 0 # 

What is the impact and where does it occur?  What is the 
organization’s involvement in the impact? 

Management Approach 

The Company has no material impact at this moment under 
this category. 

What are the Risk/s Identified? Management Approach 

There’s no risk/s identified at this moment for this category. 

What are the Opportunity/ies Identified? Management Approach 

There’s no opportunity/ies  identified at this moment for this 
category. 

Labor Laws and Human Rights 
Disclosure Quantity Units 
No. of legal actions or employee grievances involving forced or 
child labor 

0 # 

Do you have policies that explicitly disallows violations of labor laws and human rights (e.g. harassment, 
bullying) in the workplace? 

Topic Y/N If Yes, cite reference in the company policy 

Forced labor NA 

Child labor NA 

Human Rights NA 

What is the impact and where does it occur?  What is the 
organization’s involvement in the impact? 

Management Approach 

The Company has no material impact at this moment under 
this category. 

What are the Risk/s Identified? Management Approach 

There’s no risk/s identified at this moment for this category. 

What are the Opportunity/ies Identified? Management Approach 

There’s no opportunity/ies  identified at this moment for this 
category. 

Supply Chain Management 
Do you have a supplier accreditation policy? If yes, please attach the policy or link to the policy: 

Suppliers and service providers are primarily evaluated base on the quality, timeliness and costing they offer. 
However, management reserves the right to terminate a supply relationship if there are proven accusations 
of material wrong-doing on the part of the suppliers or service providers (e.g. non-compliance with 
government laws and regulations 

Do you consider the following sustainability topics when accrediting suppliers? 
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Topic Y/N If Yes, cite reference in the supplier policy 

Environmental performance N 

Forced labor N 

Child labor N 

Human rights N 

Bribery and corruption N 

What is the impact and where does it occur?  What is the 
organization’s involvement in the impact? 

Management Approach 

The impact is on the service providers/suppliers’ quality and 
efficient services required by the Company 

All services and purchases by the Company are 
carefully evaluated and approved by officers 
of the Company. 

What are the Risk/s Identified? Management Approach 

There’s no risk/s identified at this moment for this category. 

What are the Opportunity/ies Identified? Management Approach 

There’s no opportunity/ies  identified at this moment for this 
category. 

Relationship with Community 
Currently, the Company has no operation. These metrics and targets will be developed in tune with the nature 
of the businesses that will be entered into.

Significant Impacts on Local Communities 
Operations with 
significant (positive 
or negative) impacts 
on local 
communities 
(exclude CSR 
projects; this has to 
be business 
operations) 

Location Vulnerable 
groups (if 
applicable)* 

Does the 
particular 
operation 
have impacts 
on 
indigenous 
people 
(Y/N)? 

Collective or 
individual 
rights that have 
been identified 
that or 
particular 
concern for the 
community 

Mitigating 
measures (if 
negative) or 
enhancement 
measures (if 
positive) 

Not material to the 
company in 2023
due to no operation 

*Vulnerable sector includes children and youth, elderly, persons with disabilities, vulnerable women, refugees,
migrants, internally displaced persons, people living with HIV and other diseases, solo parents, and the poor or
the base of the pyramid (BOP; Class D and E)

For operations that are affecting IPs, indicate the total number of Free and Prior Informed Consent (FPIC) 
undergoing consultations and Certification Preconditions (CPs) secured and still operational and provide a copy 
or link to the certificates if available: ______-_______ 

Certificates Quantity Units 

FPIC process is still undergoing 0 # 

CP secured 0 # 

What are the Risk/s Identified? Management Approach 

There’s no risk/s identified at this moment for this category. 

What are the Opportunity/ies Identified? Management Approach 

There’s no opportunity/ies  identified at this moment for this 
category. 
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Customer Management 
Currently, the Company has no operation. These metrics and targets will be developed in tune with the nature 
of the businesses that will be entered into.

Customer Satisfaction 
Disclosure Score Did a third party conduct the 

customer satisfaction study 
(Y/N)? 

Customer satisfaction 0 N 

What is the impact and where does it occur?  What is the 
organization’s involvement in the impact? 

Management Approach 

The impact is on the service providers/suppliers’ quality and 
efficient services required by the Company 

All services and purchases by the Company are 
carefully evaluated and approved by officers 
of the Company. 

What are the Risk/s Identified? Management Approach 

There’s no risk/s identified at this moment for this category. 

What are the Opportunity/ies Identified? Management Approach 

There’s no opportunity/ies  identified at this moment for this 
category. 

Health and Safety 
Disclosure Quantity Units 

No. of substantiated complaints on product or service 
health and safety* 

0 0 

No. of complaints addressed 0 0 

*Substantiated complaints include complaints from customers that went through the organization’s formal
communication channels and grievance mechanisms as well as complaints that were lodged to and acted upon
by government agencies.

What is the impact and where does it occur?  What is the 
organization’s involvement in the impact? 

Management Approach 

The Company has no material impact at this moment under 
this category. 

What are the Risk/s Identified? Management Approach 

There’s no risk/s identified at this moment for this category. 

What are the Opportunity/ies Identified? Management Approach 

There’s no opportunity/ies  identified at this moment for this 
category. 

Marketing and labelling 
Disclosure Quantity Units 

No. of substantiated complaints on marketing and 
labelling* 

0 0 

No. of complaints addressed 0 0 

*Substantiated complaints include complaints from customers that went through the organization’s formal
communication channels and grievance mechanisms as well as complaints that were lodged to and acted upon
by government agencies.

What is the impact and where does it occur?  What is the 
organization’s involvement in the impact? 

Management Approach 

The Company has no material impact at this moment under 
this category. 
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What are the Risk/s Identified? Management Approach 

There’s no risk/s identified at this moment for this category. 

What are the Opportunity/ies Identified? Management Approach 

There’s no opportunity/ies  identified at this moment for this 
category. 

Customer privacy 
Disclosure Quantity Units 

No. of substantiated complaints on customer privacy* 0 # 

No. of complaints addressed 0 # 

No. of customers, users and account holders whose 
information is used for secondary purposes 

0 # 

*Substantiated complaints include complaints from customers that went through the organization’s formal
communication channels and grievance mechanisms as well as complaints that were lodged to and acted upon
by government agencies.

What is the impact and where does it occur?  What is the 
organization’s involvement in the impact? 

Management Approach 

The Company has no material impact at this moment under 
this category. 

What are the Risk/s Identified? Management Approach 

There’s no risk/s identified at this moment for this category. 

What are the Opportunity/ies Identified? Management Approach 

There’s no opportunity/ies  identified at this moment for this 
category. 

Data Security 
Currently, the Company has no operation and employee but already implemented the Data Privacy Act of 
2012. These metrics and targets will be developed in tune with the nature of the businesses that will be 
entered into.

Disclosure Quantity Units 

No. of data breaches, including leaks, thefts and losses of 
data 

0 # 

What is the impact and where does it occur?  What is the 
organization’s involvement in the impact? 

Management Approach 

The proper implementation of the Data Privacy Act of 2012 
has been put into measures. 

All information of any stakeholders are 
confidentially kept by the company. Any 
disclosures that the Company may make, will 
only be done within the Data Privacy Act. 

What are the Risk/s Identified? Management Approach 

There’s no risk/s identified at this moment for this category. 

What are the Opportunity/ies Identified? Management Approach 

There’s no opportunity/ies  identified at this moment for this 
category. 
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UN SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT GOALS 
Product or Service Contribution to UN SDGs 
Key products and services and its contribution to sustainable development. 

Key Products and 
Services 

Societal Value / 
Contribution to UN SDGs 

Potential Negative 
Impact of Contribution 

Management Approach 
to Negative Impact 

Investments Contributes investments to 
other companies  

No significant potential impacts identified 

* None/Not Applicable is not an acceptable answer. For holding companies, the services and products of its
subsidiaries may be disclosed.
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